

Homeless Management Information System / Coordinated Entry Committee Monday March March 11, 2024 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

Butte County Employment and Social Services – Zoom Virtual Meeting

Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82860278856?pwd=SDdQdWhTMm95dXZlU2ExYWVFVFYyQT09 Phone: (669) 900-9128 Meeting ID: 828 6027 8856 Passcode: 273570

HMIS/CE COMMITTEE MEMBERS (CHO Administrator, or designee):

Angie Little, HACB	Lisa Torres OSCIA	Karen Ramirez, True North Housing Alliance
Codie McCormack, Caminar	Shelly Watson, Jesus Center	Lynann Pillay, Oroville Rescue Mission
Nancy Jorth, Youth for Change	Tracey Gilliham, Butte 211	Kim Decker, Nation's Finest
Susan Wilson, Safe Space	Yoseb Afsharzadeh, BCDBH	Nick Fashing, DESS APS
Stephan Spirk, CAA	Ann Winters, Catalyst	TBD, Northern Circle Indian Housing Authority
Yesenia Gallgos, CHAT	Debbie Villasenor, Consultant	Tony Shafer, VECTORS
Cynthia Pesheck, Ampla	Elisa Rawlinson, DESS HHOME	
Cathryn Carhuff, Home & Heart	Jaymee McLaughlin, CUSD	
Rayna Bryson, DESS HSP	Maisue Thao, Butte College	

First Chairperson: Elisa Rawlinson, DESS HH

Second Chairperson: Sarah Frohock, BCDBH

AGENDA

1.	Call to Order	Elisa
2.	Approval of Minutes - <i>ACTION</i>a. HMIS/CES Committee Meeting, February 5, 2024	All
3.	Update on the System Performance Measures (SPM)	Elisa
4.	Training a. Drag and Drop in HMIS b. Sorting Services	Elisa
5.	Coordinated Entry Policy and Procedures; pages 1 - 12 - DISCUSSION	All
6.	Next Meeting: Monday, April 8, 2024; 1:00 – 3:00 p.m.	

7. Adjourn

Butte Countywide Homeless HMIS/CES Subcommittee Meeting Minutes February 5, 2024 Butte County Employment and Social Services

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care

BUTTE COUNTYWIDE HOMELESS CONTINUUM OF CARE HMIS/CES COMBINED COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

MONDAY February 5, 2024 at 1pm-3pm Zoom Meeting

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Tracey Gilliham, Butte/Glenn 211 Shelly Watson, Jesus Center Sarah Frohock, BCDBH Cathryn Carkhuff, Home and Heart Karen Ramirez, True North Housing Nancy Jorth, Youth For Change Elisa Rawlinson, DESS HHome Rayna Bryson, DESS Nick Fashing, DESS APS Ann Winters, Catalyst Angie Little, Housing Authority – Butte County Yesenia Gallegos, CHAT

COMMITTEE MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:

Maisue Thao, Butte College Jaymee McLaughlin, CUSD Rocio Nakae, BCDBH Lynann Pilley, Oroville Rescue Mission Debbie Villasenor, Housing Consultant Cynthia Pesheck, Ampla Sara Sweaney, Nation's Finest Meagan Smith, Northern Circle IHA Kristopher Kuntz, Anthem Codie McCormack, Caminar Susan Wilson, Safe Space Stephan Spirk, CAA Trish Pittman, Health Net Carolina Cruz, Catalyst Rachel DeLeon, DESS Cecily Kishbaugh, VECTORS Keesha Hills, OSCIA

OTHER ATTENDEES:

Javi Pineda, HACB Shelly Storkan, BCDBH Isabel Alaniz, DESS HHome Priest Martinez, NCIHA Lorena Reed, BCDBH Erin Spasbo, DESS HHome Erickson Montes, DESS IS Annie Terry, Oroville Rescue Mission Laura Smith, DESS HHome Yoseb Afsharzadeh, BCDBH Hilary Crosby, Safe Space Kim Decker, Nation's Finest Daniel Celis, Butte College Eddie Abarca, Ampla MMU

Recording Secretary: Lisa Angle

Butte Countywide Homeless HMIS/CES Subcommittee Meeting Minutes February 5, 2024 Butte County Employment and Social Services

1. CALL TO ORDER:

Meeting called to order by Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson at 1:03pm.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - ACTION:

a. HMIS/CES Committee Meeting, November 6, 2023

Motion - approve meeting minutes for November 6, 2023 as presented.

Motion: Nancy Jorth Second: Karen Ramirez Opposed: None Abstained: None

3. LSA - Update

Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson stated the LSA had been completed and submitted on time. Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson gave a historical review of the LSA in previous years along with an overview of the errors that occur in the LSA. This year the errors were significantly lower and it is anticipated the LSA for next year will be even better.

4. Sheltered HIC/PIT - Update

Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson stated the Sheltered HIC/PIT started on January 24, 2024 and almost all of the Shelterd HIC/PIT forms have been received and are waiting on a few Sheltered HIC/PIT forms coming from a non-participating HMIS agency. The non-participating HMIS agency has programs which includes transitional housing, permanent supportive housing and rapid rehousing which do not get entered into HMIS for a variety of reasons which are mainly confidential.

Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson further stated all of the Sheltered HIC/PIT forms should be received by the end of week and she will be reviewing all of the information. Several reports will be run with the information collected and agencies may get an email with questions regarding the Sheltered HIC/PIT as it relates to these reports.

Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson stated there 137 HMIS users across Butte County. There are more to be added as HMIS Users in the near future. In 2023 there were 41 new programs created in HMIS. The HMIS is expanding not only in programs and users but also in new clients. There were over 3000 new clients entered in HMIS in 2023.

Butte Countywide Homeless HMIS/CES Subcommittee Meeting Minutes February 5, 2024 Butte County Employment and Social Services P a g e | **3**

5. NEXT COMMITTEE PROJECT – CES POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson stated the next project for the HMIS/CES committee is reviewing and revising the CES Policy and Procedures. There are sections of the CES Policy and Procedures that will need to be revised and sections that will not need to be revised. Please review the CES Policy and Procedures before the next meeting on March 11, 2024 for further discussion. The CES Policy and Procedures are located on the CoC Website and Elisa Rawlinson, Chairperson will send out a copy prior to the next meeting. The last time the CES Policy and Procedures were reviewed and revised was in 2018.

Brief discussion held on revising and reviewing the CES Policy and Procedures.

Brief discussion held on Ampla opening up at the Jesus Center.

Angie Little, HACB gave an update on Prospect View and the potential date for client move in which will be by the end of February 2024.

6. NEXT MEETING:

Monday March 11, 2024 1:00pm – 3:00pm.

7. ADJOURN:

Meeting adjourned at 1:46pm.

Coordinated Entry Policies and Procedures

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care

Adopted December 19, 2016 Latest revised adopted October 24, 2018 Amentment One (Temporary) Adopted August 17, 2020

For use by the CoC Council, CoC Coordinator, HMIS Committee, HMIS Lead Agency, HMIS Software System Provider, Contributing HMIS Organizations, Partner Agencies, and all End Users

INTRODUCTION

The Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care has adopted the policies and procedures that are contained in this document; including but not limited to, homeless prevention referrals. They were recommended by the CoC's Coordinated Entry Committee based upon their understanding of HUD guidance on the issue of coordinated entry. The Coordinated Entry system is intended to apply to all providers in the CoC jurisdiction of Butte County. Initial involvement will focus on HUD and State ESG grantees due to the mandated involvement and use of coordinated entry by those programs and it is compliant with section 8409 CA Core Practices of the state regulations for the ESG grant. We recognize that the system of connecting homeless persons with needed services as soon as possible is a goal to which all providers in our area can contribute to and benefit from. All ESG and CoC recipients in the continuum must participate in Coordinated Entry.

Recipients must exercise due diligence when conducting outreach and assessment to ensure that persons are served in the order of priority in this policy. The CoC recognizes that some persons, particularly those living on the streets or in places not meant for human habitation, might require significant engagement and contacts prior to their entering housing and recipients *are not required* to keep units vacant where there are persons who meet a higher priority within the CoC and who have not yet accepted the PSH opportunities offered to them. Street outreach providers should continue to make attempts to engage those persons and the CoC and CoC Program-funded PSH providers are encouraged to follow a Housing First approach to the maximum extent practicable and for those projects that indicated in the CoC Project Application that they will follow a Housing First approach will be required to do so for both the entire operating year, as the CoC score for the CoC Program Competition is affected by the extent in which project applications indicate that they will follow this approach and this requirement will be incorporated into the recipient's grant agreement. For eligibility in dedicated or prioritized PSH serving chronically homeless households, the individual or head of household must meet all of the applicable criteria to be considered chronically homeless per 24 CFR 578.3.

The CoC expects that these policies and procedures will be refined and amended over time as the understanding of what works develops. We agree that CE should be the primary method of prioritizing persons experiencing chronic homelessness for permanent supportive housing purposes. This aligns with HUD Notice CPD 16-11. We also acknowledge that HUD has indicated that those who experience chronic homelessness and who need permanent supportive housing as well as households who are seeking a therapeutic residential environment, including those recovering

from addiction are exceptions to the designs and intentions of certain program including rapid re-housing etc. Therefore we acknowledge that program qualification is a critical factor that providers must take into consideration in addition to vulnerability.

MARKETING PLAN

The CoC's Coordinated Entry marketing strategy includes direct outreach to people on the street and other service sites, informational flyers left at service sites and public locations, utilizing 211's "Be Home" mobile application, announcements during CoC and/or other coalition meeting such as the GCHTF, and providing educating presentations to mainstream service providers.

Phase 1: PRE-SCREEN

The Pre-Screen process is conducted either in person or telephone by a first responder, 211, outreach, shelter, etc. and will not be entered into HMIS. A few easy questions will be asked to help identify the most pertinent needs of a client including housing.

These questions are:

- 1. Are you currently experiencing, or at risk of, violence in your relationship?
- 2. Are you over 18?
- 3. Do you have an urgent medial or mental health-need?
- 4. Are you in imminent danger?
- 5. Do you have a place to stay tonight?
- 6. Are you interested in long-term housing?

If the client is an unaccompanied youth, fleeing from Domestic Violence, etc., they will be referred immediately to the appropriate provider.

If the client is in need of non-housing services such as mainstream resources, they will be referred to the appropriate non-housing provider.

If the client is in crisis and in need of housing they will move to Diversion.

Phase 2: DIVERSION/ EMERGENCY SERVICES

This is a continuation of the Pre-screen. It tries to divert a client from entering the homeless system and explores resources and support systems the client may be able to utilize. Includes referrals to community mainstream resources if possible and shelters if necessary.

Questions to be asked:

- 1. Do you have friends or relatives that you can stay with tonight?
- 2. Can we help contact friends or relatives for possible housing?

"Unqualified" Emergency Services are available 24 hours a day 7 days a week though Butte 2-1-1. Emergency access point service providers could include all types of emergency services such as homelessness preventions assistance, domestic violence and emergency services hotlines, drop-in service programs, emergency shelters, and other short-term crisis residential programs. Persons must be able to access emergency services independent of the operating hours of the CoC's coordinated entry process for intake and assessment.

Phase 3: INITIAL ASSESSMENT and REFERRAL

Coordinated Entry operates 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and is conducted by a 211 or provider staff* with access to Clarity (See list of agencies on page 16). Basic information is gathered about the client's current situation and entered into the Coordinated Entry System in Clarity. The Initial Assessment will be conducted by individual users with specific access to the Coordinated Agency. This entry will have two parts, profile and Coordinated Entry Program Enrollment, which will be used as the Community Queue or Prioritization List. The client will need to acknowledge that information collected during the Coordinated Entry process will be collected in the Clarity system. Acknowledgement will be attained by signing the HMIS Client Acknowledgement form, with the exception of clients calling 211 or other service providers, who may accept a verbal acknowledgement. Contact information will also be collected to aid agencies in the follow-up of a client when housing becomes available. In the event of a verbal acknowledgement, clients will be advised by 211 that they will have an Acknowledgement Form presented to them at the agency to which they will be referred. Each agency may maintain their own Acknowledgement Form to complete client files. If the client is in immediate need of all services they will be referred to the appropriate provider for program enrollment. ⁺

The COC's are prohibited from screening people out of the coordinated entry process due to perceived barriers to housing or services, including, but not limited to, too little or no income, active or a history of substance abuse, domestic violence history, resistance to receiving services, the type or extent of a disability-related services or supports that are needed, history of evictions or poor credit, lease violations or history of not being a leaseholder, or criminal record.

The assessment process cannot require disclosure of specific disabilities or diagnosis. Specific diagnosis or disability information may only be obtained for purposes of determining program eligibility to make appropriate referrals.

CoC's coordinated assessment participants are freely allowed to decide what information they provide during the assessment process, to refuse to answer assessment questions and to refuse housing and service options without retribution or limiting their access to other forms of assistance. Written policies and procedures specify the conditions for participants to maintain their place in coordinated entry prioritization lists when the participant rejects options. (See page 12)

*If an individual wishes to file a grievance or complaint related to the Coordinated Entry process, they may contact the CoC Lead Agency CAABCI in writing at: Community Action Agency of Butte County, Inc. 181 E. Shasta Ave., P.O. Box

<u>6369, Chico, CA 95927</u> or by calling <u>530-712-2600.</u>

^{*} An appropriate title, such as Navigator, CE Specialist, etc., will be determined

[†] The referral process will be developed and refined during Program Design

*Note- Programs may require participants to provide certain pieces of information to determine program eligibility only when the applicable program regulation requires the information to establish or document eligibility

The CoC's coordinated entry process training curricula includes the following topics for staff conducting assessments:

- Review of CoC's written CE policies and procedures, including any adopted variations for specific subpopulations;
- Requirements for that use of assessment information to determine prioritization; and
- Criteria for uniform decision-making and referrals.

Questions to be asked to complete client profile:

- 1. Name
- 2. Birthdate
- 3. Gender
- 4. Race
- 5. Ethnicity

Questions to be asked to complete Coordinated Entry Enrollment:

- 1. Housing makeup
- 2. Housing Status
- 3. Current Residence Residence Prior to Program Entry
- 4. Length of Stay at Previous Place
- 5. Are you a Veteran?
 - If yes, an automatic referral is made to Veterans' resource services:
 - VA
 - Veterans' Resource Center
 - Other
- 6. VISPDAT Score from: This will be updated at a later time by VISPDAT Specialist.[‡]
 - VI-F-SPDAT Prescreen for Families
 - VI-SPDAT Prescreen for Single Adults
 - VI-Y-SPDAT Prescreen for Transition Age Youth

[‡] An appropriate title will be agreed upon for this individual during Program Design

General Admission Criteria RRHP Intake & Assessment

The following section outlines the general intake and assessment process: The Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Rapid Re-Housing Program (RRHP) is referral-based and participants must be referred by the Continuums of Care (COC) to a Coordinated Entry System (CES), with intake being completed using the Vulnerability Index (VI) (Survey) Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Tool (SPDAT), which is made free by Community Solutions. The VI-SPDAD information is entered into a Coordinated Entry System (CES), which is the Continuum of Care's (CoC's) Homeless Management Information System (HMIS), a local information technology system used to collect participant-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to homeless individuals and families and persons at risk of homelessness. The ESG RRHP Case Manager (CM) selects the individual/family from the HMIS, based on the score determined by the Vi-SPDAT. (the individual/family) most in need of ESG Rapid Re-Housing services, assisting them in obtaining housing services using a Housing First approach. According to Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Housing First "is an approach to quickly and successfully connect individuals and families experiencing homelessness to permanent housing without preconditions and barriers to entry, such as sobriety, treatment or service participation requirements. Supportive services are offered to maximize housing stability and prevent returns to homelessness as opposed to addressing predetermined treatment goals prior to permanent housing entry." https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3892/housing-first-in-permanentsupportive-housing-brief/

"Rapid Re-Housing programs are designed to help those who are homeless transition into permanent housing. The primary goal is to stabilize a program participant in permanent housing as quickly as possible and to provide wraparound services after the family or individual obtains housing. Households receiving this funding must have an income level at or below 50% AMI. Enrollment in a rapid re-housing program should rely heavily on a case management plan to ensure long term stability for program participants. Providers are expected to implement a case management plan that will increase household incomes and/or increase access to mainstream benefits for program participants. Linkages should also be made to applicable mainstream programs such as SOAR, food stamps, TANF, etc."

Program Access

The ESG RRHP Case Manager (CM) identifies who(m) is eligible for ESG RRH Program services by entering the CES, which in Butte County is by way of the HMIS (Clarity Database), which revises the regulations for the Emergency Shelter Grants program by establishing regulations for the ESG program, which replaced the Emergency Shelter Grant program. In Butte County, the database used by the CoC for HMIS is Clarity. Previously, there was a focus on addressing the needs of homeless people living in emergency or transitional shelters. Now, there is a focus

on assisting people in regaining stable permanent housing quickly after experiencing a housing crisis and/or homelessness (Federal Register, Vol 73, No. 233, pg. 1).

Determining ESG RRH Program Participant Eligibility

According to HUD in its report, Rapid Re-Housing: ESG vs. CoC and Determining Homeless and At-Risk Status, Income, and Disability, in order for participants to be eligible for ESG RRH program funds, they need to meet the following "homelessness" criteria.

Definition of "Homelessness"

Meet the definition of being "literally homeless" per the webinar Determining and Documenting Homeless and At-Risk Status, Income and Disability and demonstrate "Need", which is the amount and type of assistance. Re-Evaluation for ESG RRH Program services must be conducted at least annually to determine need and continued eligibility.

An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning:

1. Sleeping in a place not designated for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation, including: a car, a park, an abandoned building, a bus or train station, an airport, a camping ground;

2. Living in a shelter designated to provide temporary living arrangements, including: congregate shelters, hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or federal/state/local government programs;

3. Exiting an institution (e.g., jail, hospital) where they resided for 90 days or less AND were residing in emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering the institution.

4. Individuals/families fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions related to violence, which have no identified subsequent residence AND lack the resources and support networks needed to obtain other permanent housing.

Pre-Eligibility Intake

Eligibility for admission into the Emergency Solutions Grant Rapid Re-Housing (ESG RRH) Program is determined by the criteria listed below. These determinations are supported by the criteria outlined in the Fair Housing Act, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the specifications of the ESG RRH grant.

Head of household must be verified as homeless (see ESG RRH homeless criteria above, Determining ESG RRH Program Participant Eligibility).

a) CAA ESG RRH Program participant will be identified by VI-SPDAT 2.0 assessment score ranking in the HMIS, Clarity database;

b) Certification from people seeking assistance have complete access to the following services: Affirmative Outreach, which is consistent with our non-discrimination statement. Our business location is made available on our websites,

Google Maps, and Public Transportation stops are within a 5-block radius to north and south of our property. Every effort will be made to ensure that individuals can locate the agency.

Note: The determination and verification of homelessness must be received prior to entry by the Community Action Agency of Butte County or Torres Shelter and available at the first case management intake meeting.

Verification of eligibility is based on the based on the ESG RRH Program Definition of "homelessness", as determined by HUD. (See Determining ESG RRH Program Participant Eligibility).

General Admission Criteria

No Place Like Home (NPLH) -At Risk of Chronic Homelessness

The Definition

Persons qualifying under this definition are persons who are at high-risk of longterm or intermittent homelessness. At-Risk of Chronic Homelessness" for this Program means an adult or older adult with a Serious Mental Disorder who meet one or more of the following criteria :(1) persons exiting institutionalized settings, such as jail or prison, hospitals, institutes of mental disease, nursing facilities, or long-term residential substance use disorder treatment, who were *Homeless prior to admission* to the institutional setting;(2)Transition-Age Youth experiencing homelessness or with significant barriers to housing stability, including, but not limited to, one or more evictions or episodes of homelessness, and a history of foster care or involvement with the juvenile justice system; and others as set forth below ;(3) Persons, including Transition-Age Youth, who prior to entering into one of the facilities or types of institutional care listed below had a history of being Homeless as defined under this subsection: a state hospital, hospital behavioral health unit, hospital emergency room, institute for mental disease, psychiatric health facility mental health rehabilitation center, skilled nursing facility, developmental center, residential treatment program, residential care facility, community crisis center, board and care facility, prison, parole, jail or juvenile detention facility, or foster care.

Having a History of Being Homeless means, at a minimum, one or more episodes of homelessness in the 12 months prior to entering one of the facilities listed above. As long as the requirements listed above are met, Homeless Persons who have resided in one or more of the settings described above in section 1 or section 3 for any length of time may qualify as Homeless upon exit from the facility, regardless of the amount of time spent in such facility; and Homeless Persons who prior to entry into any of the facilities or types of institutional care listed above have resided in any kind of publically or privately operated temporary housing, including congregate shelters, transitional, interim, or bridge housing, or hotels or motels, may qualify as At-Risk of Chronic Homelessness.

Definition of Serious Mental Disorder

Per Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5600.3) adults and older adults who have a serious mental disorder means a mental disorder that is severe in degree and persistent in duration, which may cause behavioral functioning which interferes substantially with the primary activities of daily living, and which may result in an inability to maintain stable adjustment and independent functioning without treatment, support, and rehabilitation for a long or indefinite period of time. Serious mental disorders include, but are not limited to, schizophrenia, bipolar disorder, post-traumatic stress disorder, as well as major affective disorders or other severely disabling mental disorders. This section shall not be construed to exclude persons with a serious mental disorder and a diagnosis of substance abuse, developmental disability, or other physical or mental disorder.

Members of this target population shall meet all of the following criteria:

(A) The person has a mental disorder as identified in the most recent edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, other than a substance use disorder or developmental disorder or acquired traumatic brain injury pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 4354 unless that person also has a serious mental disorder as defined in paragraph (2).

(B) (i) As a result of the mental disorder, the person has substantial functional impairments or symptoms, or a psychiatric history demonstrating that without treatment there is an imminent risk of decompensation to having substantial impairments or symptoms.

(ii) For the purposes of this part, "functional impairment" means being substantially impaired as the result of a mental disorder in independent living, social relationships, vocational skills, or physical condition.

(C) As a result of a mental functional impairment and circumstances, the person is likely to become so disabled as to require public assistance, services, or entitlements.

(4) For the purpose of organizing outreach and treatment options, to the extent resources are available, this target population includes, but is not limited to, persons who are any of the following:

(A) Homeless persons who are mentally ill.

(B) Persons evaluated by appropriately licensed persons as requiring care in acute treatment facilities including state hospitals, acute inpatient facilities, institutes for mental disease, and crisis residential programs.

(C) Persons arrested or convicted of crimes.

(D) Persons who require acute treatment as a result of a first episode of mental illness with psychotic features.

(5) California veterans in need of mental health services and who meet the existing eligibility requirements of this section, shall be provided services to the extent services

are available to other adults pursuant to this section. Veterans who may be eligible for mental health services through the United States Department of Veterans Affairs should be advised of these services by the county and assisted in linking to those services.

(A) No eligible veteran shall be denied county mental health services based solely on his or her status as a veteran.

(B) Counties shall refer a veteran to the county veterans service officer, if any, to determine the veteran's eligibility for, and the availability of, mental health services provided by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs or other federal health care provider.

(C) Counties should consider contracting with community-based veterans' services agencies, where possible, to provide high-quality, veteran specific mental health services.

(c) Adults or older adults who require or are at risk of requiring acute psychiatric inpatient care, residential treatment, or outpatient crisis intervention because of a mental disorder with symptoms of psychosis, suicidality, or violence.

(d) Persons who need brief treatment as a result of a natural disaster or severe local emergency.

The Assessment

All persons qualifying under this definition must be prioritized for available housing by using a standardized assessment tool that ensures that those with the greatest need for Permanent Supportive Housing and the most barriers to housing retention are prioritized for the Assisted Units available to persons At-Risk of Chronic Homelessness. Qualification under this definition will be done through established protocols of the Coordinated Entry System used to prioritize those with the greatest needs among those At-Risk of Chronic Homelessness for referral to available Assisted Units.

Referral and Intake Process

Referrals for the NPLH units will come from the network of homeless services providers participating in CES.

When a NPLH Unit becomes available: The Property Manager of NPLH units will send out a request to Butte County Department of Behavioral Health staff asking them to refer eligible applicants for tenant screening. Butte County Department of Behavioral Health staff will access the CES Queue to refer the three to five highest ranking NPLH eligible individuals on the list to property management.

Non-Discrimination

Federal regulations prohibit discrimination against certain protected classes and other groups of people. State and local requirements, as well as COC'S policies, can prohibit discrimination based on other factors.

The COC'S shall not discriminate because of race, color, sex, religion, familial status, age, disability or national origin (called "protected classes"). Universal Access and effective communication for participants is ensured by Butte 211 with a three-way language barrier system in place for those with disabilities and/or ESL participants.

The COC'S will not discriminate on the basis of marital status, gender identity or sexual orientation [FR Notice 02/03/12]. The COC'S will not discriminate on the basis of citizenship, primary language or immigration status per California state law.

Participants may file a nondiscrimination complaint with Legal Services of Northern California by telephone at 530-345-9491 or by writing to: LSNC, 541 Normal Avenue, Chico, CA 95928.

All COC's grantees are required to provide written material in multiple languages; especially Spanish and Muong in Butte County areas.